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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE NORTHWEST JERRITORIES

LN THE MATTER OF an App I cation
by Chidcof Vruncein Daulotre st ol
to lodge o cervaln Caveat with
the Rlipistrar of Titles of the
Land Titles O4irce {or the HNorth-
vest Territories

REASONS FOR JUDCHMENT OF THE HONOURABLY
MR. JUSTICE I, . SORROW (No. 2)

Ou Ap;il 3, 1973, this matter came before we as a re-
sult of a reference under Section 154(1)(b) of the Land Titles
Aet, R.5.C. 1970, ¢. L-4. The reference resulted from a pur-
ported caveat being presented for registration under Scction
132 of the det which claimed an interest in an arca comprising
some 400,000 square miles of land located in the western portian
of the Northwest Territorics. The caveat was based on a clainm
for aboriginal rights and was signed by sixtcen Indian Chicefs
representing the various Indian bands resident in the areca

coverced by the lands referred to in the caveat.

The Caveat document follows the form provided for in

the Aet. The pertinent portion of the Caveat is as follows:

" CAVEAT

TO THE REGISTRAR, Land Titles Office,
Yellowknife, Northwest Territories,

TAKE NOTICIL thot we Chief Prancois
Paulette (Fort 3mith, ... (therc
follows the names of the remaining

15 chicefs) ... being residents of

the Northwest Territorics and members
of the Indian bands in the Northwest
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“Terrijtorics by virtue of Aboriginal
Rights in all land in that tract of
land in the Northwest Territories
within the liwits of the land des-
cribed in Trecaties § and 1) of 1899
and 1921, respectively, with adhesions
of 1900 and 1922, between Her Most
Gracious Majesty Queen Victoria and
His Most Gracious Majcsty King George V,
respectively, and the Indian inhabi-
tants of the land described in the
said Treaties; which said tract of
land may be more particularly des-
cribed as land included within the
following limits:

(Then follows a metes and
bounds description cover-
ing the lands shown on a
map, copy of which was at-
tached to the document,
and now reproduced as
Appendix "A' to my judg-
ment)].

but, SAVING AND EXCEPTING THERE TROM
all lands for which a Certificate of
Title in Fec Simple has been issued;
FORBID the registration of any
transfer affecting such land or the
granting of a certificate of title
thereto except subject to the claim
set forth,

Qur address is:

¢, Gerald Sutton
Box 2521
Yellowknife, N.W.T.

Dated this 24th day of March, 1973,

(Then follows the signatures of the
sixtcen chicefs).

Each of the signing chicfs swore the supporting
affidavit required by the Form to the cffect '"that the alle-

gations in the said caveat arc truc in substance and in fact




The Reference to me, dated April 3, 1973, containcd

two Dbasic paragraphs:

"fhe Registrar under the provisions
of the Land Titles Act, subscction
154(1) hereby refers the following
matter to the Judge, to wit:

A question has arisen as to
the legul validity, and the extent
right and intcrest of the persons
making application, to forbid the
registration of any transfer, and
whether the Registrar has‘a dulv
conferred or imposced upon him, by
the Land Titles Act, to lodge
such a document, and enter sanc
in the day book."

Crown Counsc! was not ready to procced on April 3
so the reference was put over to May 15th for argument. Counsel
for the Indian Chiefs (hercinafter called “"Caveators") requested
some form of protection as a condition of the adjournment and I

made the following direction:

"3) That as from the hour of ten
o'clock in the forcmoon, April 3,
1973, the Registrar is restrained
from accepting for registration

» or filing any instrument with
respect to the land purported to
be affccted by the caveat herein
unless the person presenting such
instrument for registration or
filing exccutes u covenant con-
senting to and preserving whatever
priority such cavcat may have over
such instrument."

The above dircction is still in effcct although an
appcal has been filed by the Federal Government (hereinafter

called the “Crown")., Up to this date a great many applications
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continuc. July 9th was fixed for the resumption of the pro-
ceedings at which time it was anticipated that evidence would
be heard.

Not satisficd with my disposition of May 16th the Crown
counscl launched an application in the Federal Court of Canada
against me, requesting a Writ of Prohibition to prohibit me
from procecding with any question as to the validity of the
proposcd caveat. Upon hearing of this application T preparcd
and releascd a judgment restricted to the question of my juris-'
diction alone, lecaving the second point that had been argued
reserved, and contemplating the continuation of my hearing on
July 9th, My Rcasons for Judgment are dated Junc 1l4th, 1973,
and T do not proposc reviewing the question of my jurisdiction
to hear the matter other than to obscrve that on July 6, 1973,
The Honourable Mr., Justice Frank U, Collicr of the Federal Court
of Canada, after hearing the above motion at Yellowknife cn July
5th and 6th, dismissed the Crown's application and indicated that
he thought I had “properly and accuratcly stated" my functions
under Section 154(1). My judgment of June 14th is also pre-

sently under appeal by the Crown.

The proceedings rcesumed on July 9th but without Crown
counsel they having withdrawn at that time '"until such time as
your Lordship is ready to pronounce judgment". Faced with this

most unusuial, and in my -opinion almost contemptuous action by
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Crown counsel, I felt constrained to appoint Mr, D). Brand, a
Yellowknife lawyer, to assist the Court to maintain objccti-
vily in these proceedings, Ue has acted throughout and has
been most helpful to me and 1 aw satisficd he has ensured that
the Crown's intcrests have been as well protected and presented

as if Crown counsel had themsclves been present.,

Throughout the cntire procecedings counscl for the

Government of the Northwest Territories (hercinafter called

“"the Territorial Government') have been in attendance and have

been very helpful, particularly in assisting with the production
of documents and evidence in respect to the practices followed

in the Territorial Land Titles Office.

Counscl for the Caveators called cxpert evidence directed
towards the practice followed in both the Land Titles Offices in
Yellowknife and in Aibcrta, to give the Court the observations
and opinions of anthropologists with actual expericnce in the
arca, and to introduce through another witncss who has been en-
gaged in researching Treaties 8 and 11 certain documents and
opinions from various archives, In addition, oral evidence from
many of the chiefs who had actually signed the caveat as well as
testimony from Indians and others still living who rcmcmbcrbd the
treaty-making ncgotiations, was also brought forward. This en-
tailed taking the Court to cach of the Indian scttlements within
the area comprised to rccord the evidence of some of .these old
people. In thrce instances because of the age and illness of

the witnesses the Court actually attended at the home of the
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witness and took the cvidence there,

While it may not be pertinent to this Judgment, [
would like to observe that I found this part o! the case most
interesting and intrviguing. I think almost every member of
the Court party felt that for a short moment the pages of
history werc being turncd back and we were privileged to relive
the treaty-negotiating days in the actual setting. The interest
shown by today's inhabitants in cach settlement helped to rec-
create some of the atmosphere. Thesce witnesses, for the most
part very old men and women, onc of them 101 years old, were
dignifiecd and showed that they were and had been persons of
strong character and lecaders in their respective communitics,

Onc cannot but be reminded of the words of Thomas Gray:

"Full many a gem of purest ;sgy serenc

The dark unfathomed caves of ocecan bear;
Full many a flower is born to blush unscen,
And wvaste its sweetness on the desert air."

There is no doubt in my mind that their testimony was
the truth and represcented their best memory of what to them at
the time must have been an important event. It is fortunate

indeed that their storics are now preserved.

Bccause of the nature of thesc proceedings I do not
consider it necessary to consider the evidence in depth, As I
sce my function, I am to look for a prima facic situation or a

sitvation which may promise a possibility of a claim, at such




- 8§ -

point if recached, 1 must then stop., It will bc for some other
tribunal to make the in depth analysis of the evidence, to re-
work the samec ground, and to make the final asscssment. My
findings and my conclusions, as also my remarks here, arc theve-
fore to he taken as only binding to the extent of scttling the
issucr presently before me, and should these matters or issues
arising out of them cventually come before a different court
in a diffcrent type of procceding, I want to make it clear that
I am not trying in any way to bind that court to my vicws, it
will and must feel {ree to reach its own conclusions its own way.

Walter A, Gryba, Regional representative fer Tndian
Affairs was called to con{irm that the caveators were in fact
chiefs of the bands as recogrized undcr the Indian Aet, R.S.C.
1970, ¢. I-6, as of the date of the caveat. lic described how
such chiefs may be choscn in accordancc with Indian custom or
by the formal method set forth in the statute, cither method
being acceptable. This witness confirmed that therce were no

Indian rescrves in the Northwest Territories.

Chicf Baptistc Cazon, Chief of the Fort Simpson Band
for some 20 yecars explained how the members of the present band
at Fort Simpson were all descendants from his great-grandfather
and that while his people had no written history, as far back
as their memories down through cach generation could go, his
people had made their homes in the general arca of Fort Simpson

and that such lands had always becn considered to be theirs.
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According to him, for thousands of yecars, his people had used

the land for hunting and fishing, to obtain food and clothing.
They roamed all over the country in pursuit of game. Ilec cx-
plained that in his capacity as Chief that he considered he

had a responsibility to his pcople to take the placc of their

and h.s ancestors who had signed the treaty. There are still
quitce a fow of his people cyen at this time who carn their living
from the land in the time honoured way. This witness further
explained that before cach of the caveators signed the caveat
they obtained approval from their people. This witness cxplained

how members from other bands could enter the arca normally used

by his people. Chicef Cazon was 4 member of the 1959 commission

known as the Nelson commission.

AMexic Arrowmaker, Chief at Fort Rac, agreed that in
following their traditional way of-life the Indians while always
working on the land, don't try to extract minerals for moncy.
This Chief, as did many othere, described how his pcople have
always, and still do, migrated to the cast of thc area cncom-
passcd by the proposcd caveat, during certain scasons for the
purposc of sccking game, particulsrly the caribou, Chief Arrow-
maker stated that his pcople, the Dogribs, had ncver sold their
land to anyone. This witness described how in old times his

people in living off the land would as a rule only come to

scttiements such as Fort Rac for the purposc of cxchanging furs
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for ammunition and supplies but that now, because their children
arc in schocls, the people have for the most part taken up liv-
ing in the settlement, going out {rom there during the hunting,
f1shing ana trapping scasons. Il is notl customary for peopic
of his band to interferc with members of some different band
who might come in to their lands to hunt, He agrced that his
pecople did not consider that each of them owned swall parcels

of land to the exclusion of others,

The Chief of the Loucheux Band at Aklavik, Andrew
Stewart, described pretty much the same state of affairs in
respect of the Indians of his arca as has been sct forth above.
About 12 years old at the time of the trecaty he explaincd he
had ncver hecard any of the old people say they had given up

their land to the Government,

One or two of the Indians called still lived in the
traditional way, away from the settlemcnts. One of thesc men
was Chicf Hyacinthe Andre, Chief of the Arctic Red River Band,
He lives some 45 miles up the Mackenzic River from Arctic Red

River, coming in to the scttlement for Eastcer and Christmas,

He described how some of his people, like him, live off the
land scattered throughout the arca,

The Chief of the Hay River Band, Chief Daniel Sonfrere,
explained how in gencral the people of each band respected the

arcas of others.
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Louis Norwcgian, 04 years of age, was present at Fort
Simpson in 1921 when "old"™ Norwepian as he describes his grand-
father, was leader of the Fort Simpson Band and when treaty was
first “paid", He overheard some of the cxchange of words
between his grandfather and the Government representatives. Ac-
cording to this witness the Commissioner prowisced a lctter on
fishing and trapping. When his grandfather, the recognized
leader, went home to cat, an Indian by the name of Antoine was
left, He took the treaty and became the chief -- the whitemen
made him the chief. This man's cvidence was to the cffect that
his grandfather "did not want to take the money for no reason at
all." The promises made that their hunting and fishing would be
left to them as long as the sun shall rise and the rivers shall
flow. He heard no mention of rescrves but he did hcar mention
that once they took treaty the Govermment would receive the land.
llis memery was that the purpose of the treaty was to help the
Tnﬂians live in peace with the whites and that the Indians would
receive a grubstake cach treaty payment. Once Antoine took the
moncy, this witness testified the Commissioner said cverybody had
to take the treaty after that, Antoine was given a medal, the
people took the money, and the people being "kind of scared"

felt they had to kecp Antoine on as Chicef after that.

Chicf Vital Bonnctrouge, Chiecf of the Fort Providence
Band not only confirmed the gencral evidence in respect to how the

Indian bands had traditionally lived off the land but added a
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little more to the attitude of the people at the time the trcaty
was signed. As he states: "the Jand was not mentioncd at the
treaty. “The old (hicf saad 'if this five dolltars would be for
ny land, T :; not taking it,'" This witness, by his testimony,
Jeft one with the same inpression that came from the storics
told by so many, numely, it was a deal to lock after the peopic

and nothing clse.

Alwost all of the Imdian witnesses described how, in
carrying on their traditional way of life, hunting, truapping,
and fishing, they circulated within the proper scuasons, the total
arcas considered by each band to be their area, with freedom to
¢ross into the next bund's arca if feltv nccessary, as well as
outside the arca embraced by the caveat to the west to the Yukon,

north in the Anderson River arca, and cast past Contwoyto lakc.:

Certain factual situations scemed to be apreced upon
by all or certainly most of the Indian witnesses: that beforve
the introduction of schools the Indian people moved about their
own general arca but in a fairly predictable arca, governcd by
availabilivy of game, fish and furs; that ather groups were
free to come in and hunt or {ish; that the nccessity of school-
ing for the children had come along in recent ycars to alter
the above pattern to the extent that mest of the Indian people
made more or less permancent homes where the schools were, still

going out seasonally to hunt and fish; that they did not extract
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metals or winerals but merely hunted and fished for furs and

food; and that cach Indian shared the land with the other

Indians 1 his band,

Those Indians who had cither taken part in the treaty
negotiations or who had becen present while thc necgotjations
werce under way and heard parts or all of the conversation,
scemed to be in general agrecinent that their leaders were con-
cerned about what they were giving vp, if anything, in exchange
for the treaty moncy, i.c. they were suspicious of sowcthing
for nothing; that up to the time of trcaty the concept of chief
was unknown to them, only that of leader, but the Government man
was the one who introduced thew to the concept of Chief when he
placed the qunl over the Indian's hcad aftcer he had signed for
his people; that they understood that by signing the treaty they
would get a grubstake, money, and the prowiscd protecction of the
Covernment from the expected intrusion of white scttlers. It
is clcur also that the Indians for the most part did not under-
stand English and certainly there is no cvidence of any of the
signatorics to the treaties wunderstanding linglish. Some signa-
tures purport to be what one would call a signature, some arc in
syllubic form, but most arc by mark in the form of an "X".  The
similarity of the "X'"'s is suggestive that perhaps the Government
party didn't even take care to have each Indian make his own “X".

Most witnesses were firm in their recollection that land was not
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to be surrendercd, rescerves werce not mentioned, and the main
concern and chief thrust of the discussions contc;cd around
the fear of losing their hunting and fishing rights, the
Governuent officials always re-assuring them with variations
of the phrasc that so long as the sun shall rise in the cast
and sct in the west, and the rivers shall flow, their free

right to hunt and fish would not be interfered with.

I't scems also that very little if any reference to
a map was made at any of the scttlements. In several cases,
also, it is apparent that fairly large scegments of the Indian
comnunity werc not present on the occasion of the firvst treaty
and that the recognized leaders of the respective bands were

not always there either,

Father Amourous, called to testify at Fort Rae, gave
a very helpful description of how the Indians had their own
names for lakes, rivers and physical- features and how that cven
today some of the placc names shown on modern maps of the arca
bear the Indian names -- indicating the cxtent to which these
people made constant use of the arca., This aspect was confirmed
byvthc evidence of the anthropologists and by their references
to the names sct forth on some of the explorers' maps filed as

cexhibits in these procceedings,

The two anthropologists. called to testify, Mrs., Beryl

Gillespie and Dr. Junc Helm, admitted as cxperts in their field
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and as persons who had made on the spot investigations of the
very arcas that arce cncompusscd by the proposcd caveat, af-
firmed that as far back as their historical examinations could
take them, and as far back beforce that, that reliable archaco-
logical finds could take thew, confirmed the continuous usc

and o:cupation of this land by the anccestors of the present
Indian bands., The {inds of old camp sites up through histori-
cal times to the present show that the present style or way of
life, called the traditional way of life, hunting und‘fishing,
has not changed nor the arcas and places favoured. Their evi-
dence makes it clear that thesc pceople have in their separate
groups exploited specific areas throughout the whole peried,
going back to scveral hundred years before Christ, up to the
present with very little change or variation, This cvidence
portrayed a picturc of very little in the way of intrusion from
other native groups such as the Eskipos to the north und
Algonquins from the south-cast, The cxplanation given was that
the general uniformity of language and the geographical sini-
larity of the area -- the same gencral boreal forest, caribou
and moose, the same fish -- werc the main contributing factors.
As to full exploitation of the arca these witnesses made it
clear that down through the ycars it would be doubtful if any
area had not been uscd at all except for a fcw mountain tops
and muskeg areas that could be termed unusable. In general onc

is left with the picture that each of the population groups
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(Indian Bands as reflected by the present situation) have for
all these years rcached a balance with nature, with their en-
vironment, cach group exploiting its own arca for the most
part and finding that arca sufficient to support its own mem-
bers, As in the case of the Indian witnesses, the testimony

of these two obviously well-informed scicntists was both fasci-

nating and helpful in the prescent casc,

Samples of caveats that had been accepted for re-
pistration against unpatented Crown lands werce produced us
exhibits through Lmil Gamache, the Registrar of the Northern
Alberta Land Registration District with office at Edmonton.
This witness, expericenced in the law und practice of the Alberta
Land Titles System, based on the same Torens system as the sys-
tem in the Territories, was very helpful in explaining how his
office handled caveats., Perhaps the most interesting aspect
of his testimony was his description of how upon receipt of
a caveat for registration when therc is no duplicate title in

. existence the act of registration is reccorded by an centry in
a card index specially sct up for this type of tit]c -- it
being to all intents and purposcs the daybook or book as
referred to in the Land Titles Aet, Alberta Section 141, our
Section 134, VWhen asked the hypothetical question of whether
his office system would be able to handle registration of a

cavcat such as the one under review in the present proceedings




- 17 -

he seemwed to think that while it would present problems, they
would not be insurmountable, but he would have to be assurcd
it covercd an intercost in land and that his surveyor's depart-

ment could with certainty plot the aren of land covered,

Gordon R. Carter, Registrar, Land Titles Office,
Yellowknife, wus also called and outlined the practice his
of fice had been following in respect to caveats, His practice
was not unlilke the Alberta practice which of course was not
surprising when it is remcembered that the Alherta statute
came historically from the land Acts of the Northwest Terri-
tories before Alberta was carved out as a province. DPerhaps
the most interesting aspect of Mr, Carter's evidence was that
alrcady there had been caveats accepted for filing against
"untitled® lands, one of them in respect to a claim for ab-

original rights against a small purcel of land ncar Tort Rae,

The last witness cqllcd was Father R, Fumolcau, who,
as a Roman Catholic priest presently-living in Yellowknife, has
Lbeen engaged for some time in rescarching material in respect
to Trecaties § and 11 for the purposc of writing a book on the
treaties. His rescarch has carricd him through material in
the Public Archives of Canada, the Provincial Archives, Edmonton,
as well as tiie various Mission Archives located at Ottava and
in Western Canada. Scveral documents of historical intercst

and which help to throw light on events both immediately before
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and shortly after the signing of cach tresty yere forthcoming
through this witness., 1t is unnccessary here to review his
testimwony in detail, Suffice to say thut requests by Church
officials to extend treaty privileges down the Mackenzie to
alleviate the poverty and distress of the Indians in that area
appeared Lo arousc no interest in Ottuwa until oil was {found
where Norman Wells is now located., One cannot help but gather
that once this cvent took place the ncgotiation of a trecaty
then sccomed to acquire a top priority. The urgency to obtain
a treaty, the pressurc that scemed to be placed on the T'ndians
to center into a treaty, as the Treaty party moved Lrom settle-
ment to scttlement is more eusily understood when the above

cvidence is examined.

The Territorial Lands OfLficer of the Government of
the Northwest Territories, John King, was called to cxplain

the practice followed by his Government when lands are moved

~over from the Federal Government to the Territorial Government.

This concludes my> gencral discussiqn of the facts but
it is to be understood that somc examination in detail will be
necessary as each of the various legal issues involved receive
separate trecatment,

In respect to allowing in the cvidence of such witnescs
as the anthropologists and Fat her R, Fumoleau 1 have been mind-

ful of the remarks of Hall, J. in Calder et al v. Attorney General
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of B.C., 1975 4 W.W.R. 1 where at pase 25 he states:

" Considceration of the issues in-
volves the study of many historical
documents and caactuents received in

1

evidence, particulavly Bxs. & to 18
inclusive and Ixs. 25 and 3%, The
Court nuay toke judiciaol notice of

the facts of history whether past or
contemporancous (MNenarcn S5 Lo, p.
ASU Karlsiiamns Glieladbriter, [1949)
ACCO 106 at 234 [1949] 1 AJL BV 1),
and the Court is entitled to rely on
its own historical knowledge and
rescarches: Read v, Lineoln (litshop),
[1892] A.C. 644, Lovd Halshury at

pp. 652-4."

Similarly in my trcatment of the sometimes repi-
titious statements of the many Indjian witnesscs as to what
their ancestors did I have considered them as coming within
the exception to the hearsay rule relating to declarations of
deccused persons about matters of public and gencral rights:

Milirepum et al v. Nabalco Pty. Ltd. et al, 1971 I.L.R. 141,

Finally the evidence of the twe Registrars has been
allowed in to shew administrative practice, not with the view
that becausc a certain practice has been followed it may by
that very fact alone change or reverse the law, but merely that
such administrative practice should be accorded great weight
and deference in the interprcetation of the provisions of the
particular statutes under which the practice has operated:

Commicetoners v. Penigel, 1891 A.C. 531, at pages 54G-547.
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Counscl for the caveators presented their submissions
under six sepurate headings so for convenience 1 propose con-

sidering them in the samc corder,

1. THE CAVEAT AREA HAS BEREN USED
AND OCCUPTED LY AN TRDIGENOUS
PEOPLIL, ATHAPASCAN SPEANING
INDYANS, FROM 1INk 1RGLEMORTAL

2. TROM THE TIHE OF THE FIRST NON-
INDIAN EHTRY INTO THE CAVEAT
AREA, THE LAND HAS BEEN OCCUPIED
BY DISTIRCT GROUPS OF I:NDTANS,
ORGANTZED 13 SOCIETTES ARD
USING TLJ LAND AS THEIR FORj-
TATHERS [AD DONE FOR CRNTURIES

Reference has alrcady been made to the fact that
aboriginal occupancy can be yerified and cstablished from archco-
logical discoverics in this area, As far back as history gees,
the Journals of such explorers as Sumuel Hearne and Alexander
Mackenzic, 1769 - 1771 and 1789, ﬁhc descriptions of the pcoples
living in this area, thelir language, their customs and their
living and hunting habits remains consistent and indicates an

unbroken occupancy down to modern times, -

Chief Baptiste Cazon has this to say:

"Q. Where did your grandfather come from?

A, My great grandfathber -- 1 realize that
my grandfather -- all the Fort Simpson
band are descended from the onc grand-
father about two hundred ycars ago, or
something like that, and various dif-
ferent names.,

Q. To your kncwledge and belief how long
. have the Slavey pecople lived in the
rcgion of Fort Simpson?

)
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A I would say -- 1 don't kaow the exact
date, but thousands and thousands of
ycars ago, 1 Know,"

There were many similar statements., One more {rom

Chief Bdward Sayine bears quoting:

"My mother is alive; she is 80 now, and
she told me shie had been there -~ that
she was borp there (Fort Resolution)
and thuat they were there already, his
dad was there and his grandfather was
there, so 1 will say a thousand ycuars
already."

It is clear from the cvidence that all of the Indian
peoples in the arca conceraned spealk the common language -- the
Athapascun tongue -~ and this combined with the geographic simi-
larity of the arca has been a major factor in keeping them

within the general region for as far back as we can go.

Within this common group, speaking variations in the
Athapascan language or diulects, there arce to be found different
pcoples that correspond to the present bands c¢reated under the
Indian Act. Thesc distinct groups or peoples are: Chipewyiin
(including Yellowknifes), Dogrib, Slnﬁcy, Mountain, Bcar Lalke,
Harc, Louchecux (also called Kutchen). Over the years therc have
bccn.ovcrlappings or fusions within somec of these pgroups which
may have resulted in ncw groupings and some variation in names,
but there has at no timec been any population replacement. Thesc

overlappings have all been what might be called minor adjustments,
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Some of the bands are single bands like the Bear Lake Indians

while others like the Dogrib have as many as five regionnl

bands.  The regional band is norzally expected 1o he

fonnd

Living in relation to a particular resource arca, which area

may encompass drainage arcas, and this repional band would

know at what point on the perimeter of this arca Indians of

different regional group micht be encountered.

While each regional band feel free to enter into

another's region, and there did not appear to he any concept

of trespass,

such intrusions were aslways looked upon

treated as temporary,

Dr.

NQ'

lleln in her testimony states:

bDoctor Helm, in the last scrics of
questions, we have dealt with the
formation of the Bear Luke Indians

Ly a fusion of population, the ending
of the Yellowknifes as a distinct,
named group by a fusion of population,
We have discussed the alteration of
usc by logribs of the territory in
the most casterly portion of the

area designated on the map as Dogrib,
and we have dealt with the questien
of the cxtension of castward ox-
ploitation by the Kuchin Indians.
Leaving aside those matters, in any
other way has there been an alter-
ation of the territovies indicated

on this map as heing those of par-
ticular tribal groups during the
period for which data exists on

these questions?

and

No, therc is, I would say, a continuing
occupiation by peoples who today arc
known by thesc particular names, as
Doctor Gillespie pointed out,for in-
stance, as Beaver Jndians who were
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formerly Slaves at the jupction of
the Mackenzic and Liard Rivers you
know, peoples who are currently
known by tiese naies such as the
Beaver Tpdians, wid PBocior Gilleaspic
pointed out that the people: at the
lorks of the Liavd and Mackenzie
Kivers were indeod at that time
formerly Slaves, but not population
replacements or thrusts or anything
of morce than minor adjustments of
which we may never know,

During the period .or which data
exists, have there bheen any war-

fare or hostilitics which have
resulted in any cignificant alteration
of territorics uscd by particular
bands or tribes?

The only reliably docunented case
is that temporary retreat of the
Dogribs frow the castern rcaches
of thciy zone duc to the stimu-
latinn of the fur trade to the
Yellowknifes to bully the Dopribs.
The only other onc which is very
inadequately and not properly
assesscd are accounts from whites
not in the arca that Chipewyans
were attacking people that were
designated as Slaves and the Crees
were from outside the territorial
region, and whether at somc carlicer
period that resulted in adjustment
of Sluve boundaries, 1 don't think
we can cver say."

The significant divisions arc thosc
which we have termed regional bunds

or regional grouns, They are signifi-
cant beccuuse a regional group by de
facto or deflinition exploits in the
course of a year a region which con-
tains sufficient resources to sustain
it year after ycar and is also a group
of sufficient size to sustain itsclfl
generation by gencration by sub-
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" stantial inter-marriage with other
members of the same group, given
incest restrictions and restrictions
of other kinds, so that it has, (irsi
of all, ccenomic and ccological bases,
They are peoplc vha, exsept in times
of stress, can swivive vear after
year and genevation after acnevation,
scason throuch scason, within that
zone ih which they have stutions to
which they may move by scuson, cither
as a larace group or probably an smaller
proups, and then vour othor question
was their relaticns to othey like groups."

Chicf Dunicl Sonfrere in his testimony says:

"Before cven the white people cane or
ecven since the white people came,
when people were making their living
trapping and hunting, although the
boundurics are not written on maps
and not drawn out on maps,the people
from cach community realizes and
respects other people's arcas; al-
though they are not written, although
they arc not drawn on the maps, they
have respect for cach other's areas,
and he realizes how much the people
from Fort Swmith usc it as well as ihe
people from Fort Providence, but when
it comes to helpiny cach other it does not
matter, they help cach other.”

And finally Dr. Helw ugain:

"Q. Would vou say that this habit of hospi-
tality or hunter cthic, thce term you
used, absence of a notion of cxclusion
or concept of trespass, would you say
thut this means that there are no recal
definable territories for the regional
bands in the Northwest Territorics?

A. No, 1 couldn't say that, becausc any
really knowledgcable Indian could tell
you by thc thousands of place nanes
which places were in his territory,

. in his group, and which oncs are in
the range of the ncighbouring group.
So, adult informcd persons would know
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" by this welter of knowledge of the land,
So, "we go here, we o po there, we go some
other place,’ and "that is vhere the
co-and-so people go.' “That as their
comtry.” Al Ly thut, of conrse, thure
are territorice, recopnized hy the
peoples themselves,

Q. ! want to put a quotc to you and ] want
you to tedl me if this would be un
gecurate statemzmt in orelation to the
Tndians of the Northwest Territories
whom you have been describing,  Would
it be accurate to say that when the
non-Indians cane, the Indians werc
here, orpanized in society and
odcupying the land as their feroe-
fathers have done for centuries?
Would vou say that that is an ac-
curate statement? Is that an
accurate statement in relation to
the Tndian people of the Northuest
Territories?

A, Oh, yes."

On the cvidence before me 1 have no difficulty find-
ing as fact that the urca embraced by the caveat has been used
and occupicd by an indigenous people, Athapascan speaking Indianc,
from time immemorial, that this land has been occupicd by dis-
tinct groups of these same Indians, organized in socicties and
using the land as their forcfathers had done for centurics, and
that thosc persons who signed the caveat are chicfs representing

the present-day descendants of thesc distinct Indian groups.

3. AN INDJIGENOUS POPULATION HAVE A LEGAL
TITLE TO LAND IF THEY WERE In OG-
CUPATION OF THAT LAND PRIOR TO
COLONIAL ENTRY INTO THE ARLA

In addressing the standing Committee on Indian Af-

fairs and Northern Development on July 5, 1973, Kenneth M. Lysyk,
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Deputy Attorney General of the Province of Saskatchewan and

a recognized student of Indian law discussed "Aboriginal. Title"

t

or “Indian Title"., MHis opening venmarks contain as clear cut A
definition of legal Indian title as can be found and bears re-

pecating (page 2315):

“In many parts of this country, the
Unitcd Stutes and the Comwonivealth
aonative interest in the land has
been said to exist and to remain in
existence until cession or surrender
or some other means of cxtinguinh-
ment of the native interest has been
cffected,  Persumably it was this
native interest in the land that
this Committec was interested in
when it decided to look into ab-
original rights, and this samc
interest is variously described
as ‘'Indian Title', 'Aboripinal Title',
‘Original Title', 'Native Title',
Right of Occupancy', 'Right of
Posscssion' and so on. These taric
Yave beoopn used more or loss fntor-
chungeably. 1 will speak of Indian
Title simply because that is the
most common form of reference in
Canadian cnactments and official
usage. '

As to defining Indinn Title ... .
For present purposes, 1 owight simply
refer to the reasons of dMr. Justice
Judson in the Celder decision handed
dowan on Januuary 31 of this ycar. lle
said, and two other members of the
court concurrcd with him:

"Althoupgh I think it 1s clear
that Indian Title in British
Colurbia cannot owe its origin
to the Proclamation of 1763,
the fact is that when the



. ‘settlers came, the Indians were
there, orvganized in socictics
and occupying the land as their
forcfathers had dene for cen-
turies. This is what Indian
Title moans ...

That is not a bad working definition of Indiun
Title., 1t identifics the claim of an un-
organized community -- whether it be

called a tribe, a4 nation, a band, or

whatever -- which occupicd a defined

territory at the time of the

coming -

of the Buropcans, and which had oc-
cupied that territorv into the in-
definite past or, if you like that
tcrminology, since time immemorial."

I do not think that the nature of
before me makes it necessary for me to make

of the casc law, historical authoritics and

of Indian Title or Aboriginal Rignts, - Thesce

this application
4 complete review
other discussions

arc all carcfully

discussed in thc more recent decisions dealing with this sub-

ject. The Milirrpw: casc (supra) contains s

particular the Calder casce {supra) carrics a

examination of such authoritics. | propose only to examine herc

uch a review. In

full and complete

such of thesec authoritices as may have a more direct bearing on

the particular circumstances of the present

inquiry.

What has been referred to by counsel in the present

hcearings as the “first lund freeze" is the Hoyal Proclamation

of 1763, Of particular interest here is the

phrasc:

"We do, with the advice of our

Privy Cowuncil strictly cnjoin
and require, that no private
< person do presume to make any

Purchase from the said Tndians
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"of any Lands rescrved to the said
Tndians, within those narts of our
Colonics where, We have thought
proper to allow Scttlement; but
that, if at any Time any of the
said Indians sheuld be inclined
to disposc of the said Lands, the
sane shall be Purchasced only for
Us, in our Name, at some public
Mecting or Assembly of the sald
Indians, to he held for the Pur-
pose by the Governor or Commander
in Chief of our Colony ... ."

Of particular interest to the present arca is that

portion of the Royal Iroclamaticon stuating:

"And VWe do further declure it to he
Our Royal ¥Will and Plecasurc, for the
present as aforesaid, to reserve
under "our Sovercignty, I'rotcection,
and Dominion, for the use of the
said Indians, all the Lands and
Territories not included within
the Limits of Our Said Thrce New
Governments, or within the Limits
of the Territory granted to the
lludson's Bay Company, as also all
the Lunds and Territories lying to
the VWestward of the Sources of the
Rivers which fall into the Sca from
the West and North West as aforesuaid;

Ad We do hereby strictly forbid,
on Pain of our Displeasurc, all our
loving Subjects from wmaking any
Purchases or Shttlements whatever,
or taking Posscssion of any ol the
Lands above resecrved, without our
espccial lecave and Licence for the
Purposc first obtaincd."

Examination of the source material before me duving

this inquiry leads mc to belicve that the arca covered by the

proposed caveot was known to the framers of the Proclamation
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and could casily have been those "Lands and Territorics lying
to the Westward of the Sources of the Rivers' referred to above.
1 am not however unmindful of the remarks of Johmson, J. at
pages 00-67 of K. v. sSikyea (1964) 46 W.W.K. 05 wherein he
holds these same lands to be terra incognita. T would observe
ﬂerc that Mr. Justice Johnson did pot have as full information
hefore him in the Silkwea case as appears to have becn before

the court in the Calder Caze and as is ncow before ne.

Perhaps one of the most important cxpressions of how
common law courts should and have trecated the subject of ab-
original rights is that of Chicf Justice Marshall ef the United
States Supreme Court in Johncon v. MeIntosh (1823) 8 Whcaton

543: To quote from pages 572 to 574 in part:

"On the discovery of this immense con-
tinent, the great nations of Lurope
were cager to appropriate to them-
sclves so much of it as they could
respectively acquire., Jts vast
extent offered an ample ficld to
the ambition and enterprisc of all;
and the character and religion of
its inhabitants afforded an apology
for considering them as a people
over whom the superior genius of
Furope might claim an ascendency.
The potentates of the old world
found no difficulty in convincing
themselves that they made ample
compensation to the inhabitants
of the new, by bestowing on -thenm
civilization and Christianity, in
exchange for unlimited independence.
But, as they were all in pursuit
of nearly the same object, it was
necessaryv, in order to avoid con-
flicting secttlenents, and conscquent
war with cach other, to estublish
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"a pricoaple, which @11 should acknow-
ledee o the Yaw by wivich the right
of avowisition, which they all
anscried, should be regulated as
between themselves.,  This principle
was, that discovery guve title to
the vovernment by whose subjects,
or by whose authority, it was made,
apainst all other LEuropcan govern-
ments, which title might be consu-
matced by possession.

"The cxclusion of all other Luropcans,
necessarily gave to the nation making
the sole ripght of acauirving the soil
from the nutives, and establishing
settlements upon it. It was a right
with which no iuropcans could intcr-
fere. 1t was a right which ail
asscerted for themsclves, and to
the asscrtion of which, by others,
all asscnted.

"Those relations which were to exist
between the discoverer and the natives,
were to be regulated by themsclves,

The rights thus acquired being ox-
clusive, no other power could inter-
posec between then,

"Tn the cstablishment of these relations,
the rights of the vriginal inhubitants
were, in no instance, entircely dis-
regarded; but were necessarily, to a
considerahle extent, impaired.  They
verce admitted to be the rvightful oc-
cupants of the soil, with a legal as
well as just claim to retain possession
of it, and to usc it according to
their own discretion; but their rights
to complete sovercignty, as independent
nations, werc necessarily diminished,
and their power to disposc of the soil
at their own will, to whomsocver they
plecased, was denicd by the original
fundamental principle, that dis-
covery gave cxclusive title to
thosce who madce 1it.

"ihile the different natlons of Europe
respected the right of the natives, as




"occupants, they asserted the ulti-
mate dominion to be in themsalves;
and claimed and cxerciscd, as a
conscquence of this nltimate
dominion, a power to grant the
s0il, while yet in possession of
the natives, These grants have
been understood by ail, to convey
4 title to the grantees, subject
only to the Indian right of
occupancy."

One of the curlicst decisions in respect to Indian

that of the Judicial Committce of the Privy Council

in 5¢. Catherines Milling v. Queen (1888} 14 A.C. 46 where at

- 55 Lord Watson statcd:

"The territory in dispute has been
in Tndian occupation from the date
of the proclamation until 1873,
During that interval of time Indian
affairs have been administered
successively by the Crown, by the
Provincial Governments, and (since
the passing of the British North
America Act, 1867), by the Govern-
ment of the Dominicn. The Policy
of these administrations has heen
all along the same in this respect,
that the Indicn inhabiltants have
been precluded from cntering into
any transaction with a subject for
the sale or transfer of their in-
terest in the land, and have only
been permitted to surrender their
rights to the Crown Ly a formal
contract, duly ratified in a mceting
of their chiefs or heud men convencd
for the purpese. Whilst there have
been changes in the admiristrative
authority, there iias been no change
since the year 1763 in the character
of the interest which its Indian -
inhabitants had in the lands sur-

. rendered by the treaty.  Their
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"posscssion, such as it was, can only
be ascribed to the general provisions
made by the royal proclamation in
favour of all Tndian tribes then
living under the sovercignty and
protcction of the British Crown.

It was sugeested in the coursc of

the argunent for the Dominion, that
inasmuch as the proclamation recites
that the territories thereby reserved
for the Indians had never 'been ceded
te or purchasced by' the Crown, the
entire property of the land remained
with them, That inference is, however,
at variance with the terms of the
instrument, which shew that the
tenure of the Indians was a personal
and usulructuary right, dependent
upon the good will of the Sovercign,

The lands rescrved are expressly
stated to be 'parts of Our dominions
and territorics; ' and it is declared
to be the will and pleasurc of the
sovercign that, 'for the present,’
they shall be rescrved for the use
of the Indians, as their hunting
grounds, under his protection and
dominion. There was a great deal
of learncd discussion at the Bur
with respect to the precisc quality
of the Indian right, tut their Lord-
ships do not consider it necessary
to express any opinion upon the point.
It appears to them to he sufficient
for the purposcs of this case that

2 therce has been all along vestoed in
the Crown a substantial and para--
mount cstate, underlying the Indian
title, which becane a plepum dominiunm
whenever that title was surrcndered
or otherwisc extinguished."

In the Calder case it would appcar that both Mr,
Justice Judson and Mr. Justice lall in writing the two opposing

judgments agrce that cven without the Royal Proclamation there
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can be such a lepgal concept as Indian Title or Aboriginal Rights
in Canadian law,

Justice Judson's remarks have alrcady been sct forth
in the quotation from Kemneth M. Lysyk. While Justice Judson
went on in his judgment to find that gencral land legislation
in the colony constituted a termination of the Indian titlc, his
remarks can still be taken as authoritative on the question of

title.

Onc reference only is nccessary from the judgment of
Justice Mall, although I would obscrve that the full judgment
is a most comprchensive revicw and consideration of the
authorities. At page 49 he states: (referring to possession

as proof of ownership):

"Prima facte, thercfore, the Nishgas
arc the owners of the lands that
have been in their pesscssion from
time immemorial and thercfore the
burden of establisihing that their
right has been cxtinguished rests
squarcely on thice respondent.”

Among the many other reported decisions read under
this hecading arc: R, v. Sikyea, (1964) 46 W.W.R. 65, 49 W.W.R.
306 (S.C.); Worcester v. Georgia (1832) 6 Peters 512; Queen v.

Symonds (1847) N.Z. P.C.C. 387; In re. Soutiern Rhodesia 1919

A.C. 211; Amodu Tijani v. Seeretary, Southern Nigeria 1921 2 A.C.

399; U.5. v. Santa Pe Pacifie (1941) 314 U.S. 339; Lipan Apache

v, United States Ct. Cl. 487; U.S. v. Klamath Indians (1937)
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304 U.S. 119; Shoshone Indianc v. U.S. (1944) 324 U.S. 335:

H

U.S. v, Aleca Band of Tillamooks (1946) 329 U.S. 40; U.S. v.

Aleea Band of Tillamooks (No. 2) (1950) 341 U.S. 48; Tee-Hit-Ton

Imdians v, U. S, (1954) 348 U.S. 272, Tlingit and Haida Indians

of Alaska v, U.S5. (1959) 147 Ct. Cls, 315,

From these authorities I conclude that there are cer-
tain well cstablished characteristics of Indian legal title if
the Indiuans or aborigines werce in occupation of the land prior

to colonial entry. Thesce are:

(1) Possessory right -- risht to
usc and exploit the land.

(2) 1t is a communal right,

(3) Therc is a Crown interest
underlying this title -- it
being an estate held of the
Crown.

(1) -1t is inalicnable -- it cannot
be transferred but can only be
terminated by reversion to the
Crown,

I am satisficd on my view of the facts that the in-
digenous people who have been occupying the arca covered by
the proposed caveat come fully within these criteria and that
in the terms of the language of Justice llall in the Calder Case

may therefore be "prima facie the owncrs of the lands."

4. THE LAND RIGHTS OF THE CAVEATORS
HAVE BLEEN COKFIRMED OR RECOGNIZED
BY THE ROYAL PROCLAMATION OF 17063,
THE ITMPERTAL ORDER 1IN COUKNCIL OF
1870 TRANSFERRING THE NORTHWESTERN
TERRITORY TO CANADA, THE EARLY
DOMINION LANDS ACT AND BY THE
GOVEERMMENT ACTTONS RLUELATING TO
TREATY 8 AND TREATY 11.
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Once it is cstablished as concluded under heading 3
above that the Indians may be owners of their lands it is per-
haps unnccessary to cxamine as to whether this prima facie
ownership has enjoyed acceptance from the various levels of
Government down through the years. Nonetheless such an cxam-
ination may be reassuring cspecially when the question of
whether such ownership has been extinguished or not has to be

looked into as well.

1t has been supgested that the Royal Proelamation
of 1763 provides some confirmation of thesc rights. I do not
proposc adding to my remarks alrcady sct forth in respect to
the Proclamation under hecading 3 other than to point out that
in any cvent this famous document would at the least, according
to Justice Hall, (Calder Case p. 67) be declaratory of Imperial
Policy. This policy as far back as 1763 was not one to deny
Indians title but rather rccognized its existence and laid down
the procedurcs for extinguishment which appecar to have been
adopted and followed down through the ycars by the Canadian

Government at least up to the sigining of Trcatics No. § and 11.

In 1821 there is a reference to "Indian Territorics"
iﬁ an ecnactment relating to the regulaﬁing of the Fur Trade and
cstablishing a Criminal and Civil jurisdiction: 1 & 2 Geo. IV
c. 66. It is interesting to note that the statute includes
the caveat arca as "Indian Territories" and provides for the

law applicable to be the law of England.
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Following Confederation and the passing of the British
North America Act, 18C7 arrangements for the transfer of Rupert's
Land and the North-Western Territories of Canada, alrcady con-

templated by Section 146 of that Act, became finalized,

In an address to the Queen by the Senate and Housc of
Commens of Canada made in December 1867, praying for the trans-
fer of these two land areas it was stated that upon transfcrance
of the territories the '"claims of the Indian tribes to compen-
sation for lands required for purposcs of settlement will be
considered and settled in cenformity with the equitable prin-
ciples which have uniformly governed the British Crown in its
dealing with the Aborigines.'" (Schedule A, Order in Council

of 1870).

Essentially the same assurance is made in 1870, See
Schedule B to the Order in Council of 1870. The burden of how
such claims for compensation arc to be met is assumed by the
Canadian Government under Section 8 of the actual agrecment

between Canada and the Hudson's Bay Company.

The latter part of Section 146 of the British North

America Act, 1867 containg the language:

"and the provisions of any Order in
Council in that bechalfl shall have
cffect as if they were cnacted by
the Parliament of the United Kingdom
of Great Britain and Treland.”

1t would scem to me from the above that the assurances

made by the Canadian Government to pay compensation and the
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1
|
\
|
1
recognition of Indian claims in respect thercto did by virtue
of Section 146 above, become part of the Canadian Constitution
|
and could not be removed or altered except by lmperial Statute.
To the cxtent, therefore, that the above assurances represent a
recognition of Indian title or aboriginal rights it may be that
the Indians living within that part of Canada covered by the

proposed caveat may have a constitutional guarantcce that no

other Canadian Indians have.

|
|
l
While the memory of parliamentarians still retained
the above matters freshly in their minds, presumably, the

legislaticn morc closely following Confederation and the

executive acts as well appear to show a greater appreciation

of Indian rights and titlc than perhaps has been the case in

more recent times,

It is not necessary to cxaminc this aspect in dapth
but in passing it is to be noted, for cxample, that the Dominion

Lands Aet, 1872, contains a protcction to the cffect:

"42. Nonc of the provisions of this
Act respecting the scttlenent of
agricultural lands, or the lecasc
of timber lands, or the purchasc
and sale of mincral lands, shall
be held to apply to territory the
Indian title which shall aot at
the time have heen extinguished.™

An Order in Council of January 26, 1891 (never acted

upon apparently according to Father Fumolcau's evidencc) con-

tained the following paragraph:
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“On a Report dated 7th of January 1891,

from the Superintendent General of
Indiun Af{fairs stating that the dis-
covery in the District of Athabaska
and in the Mackenzice River Country
that immense quantitics of petro-
leum eaists within certain arcas

of those repions as well as the
Lelief that other minerals and
substances of cconomic value, such
as sulphur on the South Coast of
Great Slave Lake and Salt on the
Mackenzie and Slave Rivers, arc

to be found therecin, the develop-
ment of which may add materially

to the public weal, and the further
consideration that several Railway ,
projects in connection with this
portion of the Daminion nav be

given effect to at no such remote
date as mipght be supposed, appear

to render it advisable that a

trecaty or trcatics should be made
with the lndians who claim those
regions as their hunting grounds,
with a view to the extinguishment
of the Indian title in such portions
of the same as it may be considered
in the interest of the public to
open up for sctticment."

A second Order in Council enacted June 27, 1898 con-
tains pretty much the same language in respect to "aboriginal
. title" and as to how the inhabitants 'should be trcated with

for the relinquishment of their claim to territorial ownership.”

The above lunguage is repeated in the Order in Council
of Dccember 6, 1898, which dcals wfth the extension of Treaty 8
into British Columbia. Finally on March 3, 1921, the Order in
Council which authorizcd the negotiation of Treaty 11 contains

the paragraph:
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"The carly development of this
territory is anticipated and
it is advisable to follow the
usual policy and obtain frowm
the Indians cession of their
aboriginal title and thereby
bring them into closer re-
Intion with the Government
and establish sccurely their
legal position."

Unless, thereforc, the negotiation of Trcaty No. 8

and Treaty No. 11 legally terminated or extinguishcd the
Indian Jand rights or aboriginal rights, it would appear that
there was a clear constitutional abligation to protect the
“"legal rights of the indigenous people in the arcs covered Ly
the proposed caveat; and a clcar rccognition of such rights.

5. TREATY 8 AND TREATY 1] COUL) NOT
LEGALLY TERMINATE INDIAN LAND
RIGHTS. THI INDTAN PLOPLE DID
NOT UNDERSTAND OR AGREE TO TIIL:
TERMS APPEARING IN THE WRITTEN
VERSION OF Tl TREATIES, ONLY
THE MUTUALLY UNDERSTOOD PROMISES
RELATING TO WILD L1FLE, ANNUITIES,
RELIEF AND FRIENDSHIP BECAME
LEGALLY LFFECTIVE COMUITTMENTS.

Treaty No. 8 contains scveral recitals of particular

significance to the issues under the prescent heading:

" ARD WHEREAS, the said Indians have
been notified and informed by licr
Majesty's said Commission that it is
Her desire to open for sctticment,
immigration, trade, travel, mining,
lumbering, ~od such other purposes
as to Her Miyesty may seem meet, a
tract of country bhounded and des-
cribed as herecinafter mentioned,
and to obtain the consent thereto
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"of Her Indian subjeccts inhabiting the
said tract, and to make a trecaty, and
arrange with them so that there may be
pcace and good will belween them and
Her Majesty's other subjects, and that
Her Indian people may know and be
assurcd of what allowances they arc
to count upon and reccive from Her
Majesty's bounty and benevolence;

.. AND WHEREAS, the said Commissioners
have procceded to negotiate a treuty
with the Cree, Beaver, Chipewvan and
other Indians, inhabiting the district
hercinafter defined and descrilied,
and the same has been agreed upon and
concluded by the respective bands at
the dates mentioned hercunder, the said
Indians DO HERERY CEDE, RELEASE,
SURRENDER AND YIELD UP to the Govern-
ment of the Dominion of Canada, for
Her Majesty the Queen and ller successors
for cver, all their rights, titles and
privileges whatsoever, to the lands
included within the following limits,
that is to say:-

AND ALSO the said Indian rights, titles
and privilepes whatsocver to all other
lands whercver situated in the North-
west Territories, British Columbia, or
in any other portion of the Dominion of
Canada,

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same to ller
Majecsty the Queen and Her successors
for cver.

And Her Majesty the Qucen HEREBY
AGREES with the said Indians that they
shall have right to pursuc their usual
vocations of hunting, trapping and
fishing throughout the tract surrendered
as heretofore described, subject to
such regulations as may from time to
time be made by the Government of the
country, acting under the authority of
Her Majesty, and saving and excepting
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"such tracts as may be required or taken
up from time to time for scttlement,
mining, lumbering, trading or other
purposes,

And Her Majesty the Queen herchy agrces
and undertakes to lay aside reserves for
such bands as desirc reserves, the same
not to cxcecd in all onc squarc mile for
cach family of five for such number of
families as may clcct to reside on re-
serves, or in that proportion for
larger or smaller familices; and for
such families or individual Indians
as may prefer to live apart froin band
reserves; Her Majesty undertakes to
provide land in scveralty to the extent
of 160 acres to cach Indian, the land
to be conveycd with a proviso as to non-
alienation without the conscnt of the
Governor General in Council of Canada,
the sclection of such reserves. and
lands in everalty, to be madec in the
manner following, namely, the Super-
intendent General of' Indian Affairs
shall depute and send a suitable person
to determine and set apart such reserves
and lands, after consulting with the
Indians concerned as to the locality
which may be found suitable and open
for sclection.

Provided, however, that Her Majesty
reserves the right to deal with any
settlers within the bounds of any lands
reserved for any band as She may sce
fit; and also that the aforesaid reserves
of land, or any interest thercin, may
be sold or otherwise disposcd of by
lHer Majesty's Government for the use
and benefit of the said Indians entitled
thereto, with their consent first had
and obtained."

" And the undersigned Cree, Beaver,
Chipewyan and other Indian Chiefs and
Headsmen, on their own behalf and on
behalf of all the Indians whom they
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“"represent, DO HEREBY SOLENNLY PROMISE
and engagpge to strictly observe this
Treaty, and also to conduct and behave
themsclves as good and loval subjects
of Her Majesty the Qucen,

THEY PROMISE AMD ENGAGE that they
will, in all respects, obey and abide
by the law; that they will maintain
pcace between each other, and bectween
themselves and other tribes of Indians,
and between themsclves and others of
Her Majesty's subjects, wihether Indians,
half-breeds or whites, this yecar in-
habiting and hercafter to inhabit any
part of the said ceded territory; and
that they will not molest the person
or property of any inhabitant of such
ceded tract, or of any other district
or country, or interfere with or trouble
any person passing or travelling through
the said tract or any part thereof, and
that they will assist the officers of
Her Majesty in bringing to justice and
punishment any Indian offending against
the stipulations of this Treaty or in-
fringing the law in force in the country
so ceded."

It is nof necessary to repeat the equivalent para-
graphs contained in Treaty No. 11. It is to be observed that
this Treaty, which covered all that part of the cavcat area
not covered by Trcaty No. 8, by far the larger part, contained

'

language almost identical in wording.

Treaty No. 8 was negotiated by a Commission made up

of fhrcc, Trecaty No. 11 by a Commission of one.

In the light of the evidence which was adduced during

the present hearing it is perhaps of interest to quote H. A,
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Conroy, the Trcaty No. 11 Commissioncr, wherc in his report
to his Deputy Superintendent General, Department of Indian

Affairs, he states:

"They were very apt in asking questions,
and here, as in all the other posts
where the treaty was signed, the
questions asked and the difficulties
encountered were much the same. The

. Indians scemed afraid, for one thing,
that their liberty to hunt, trap and
fish would be taken away or curtailed,
but were assured by me that this would
not be the case."

While the important phrase in respect to surrender
of the land is in each case camouflaged to some extent by
being included in onc of the preambles, none the less the clear
intention would scem to be to obtain from the Indians 'all
their rights, titles and privileges whatsocver, to thc lands ...
The actual words are: ''the said Indians DO HEREBY CEDE, RE-
LEASE, SURRENDER AND YIELD UP", Recuad in conjunction with "all
their fjghts, titles and privileges' it is about as completc and
all-embracing language as can be imagined. If one was to stop

there of course the Indians were left nothing.

It scems to me that there are two possible quali-

fications:

(1) That rcally all the Government
did was confirm its paramount
title and by assuring the Indians
that "their liberty to hunt, trap
and fish" was not to be taken away

"
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or curtailed was in cffect a
form of declaration by the
“Government of continuing ab-
original rights in the Indians.

In the present procccdingk, I dc not have to po so
far as to deccide whether this is the casc or not. In my role
as "inquirer'" under the Land 7itles Act, as 1 sce it, T merely
have to ascertain if therc is some chance of success by the

Cavecators in this respect.

1 am satisficd here that the caveators have an argu--
able case under this heading and and have at lecast the possibi-
lity of persuading the Federal Court or whichever other Court
may be called upon to rule, that the two treatics are not
effective instruments to terminate their aboriginal rights
for the above reason. In other words the Federal Government

sought these trcaties to rcassure their dominant title only.

(2) That, unlike perhaps the previous
treaties, the manner of negotiation,
the"ultimatum" cffect of the dis-
cussions between the parties in
the Northwest Territories was
such as to make it possible for
the cavecators to succced in
persuading a court exercising
the final say on thesc matters
that therec was either a failure
in the mceting of the minds or
that the treaties were merc 'peace"
trecatics and did not cffectively
terminate Indian title -- certainly
to the extent it covered what is
normally referred to as surfacc
rights -- the use of thc land for
hunting, trapping and fishing.
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Under this sub-heading it is nccessary to cxamine
the evidence in somewhat closcr detail than has been done

heretofore in this judgment.

Throughout the hearings before me therc was a common
thread in the tcétimony -- that the Indians were repcatedly
assurcd they were not to be deprived of their hunting, fishing
and trapping rights. To me, hearing the witnesses at first
hand as I did, many of whom were there at the signing, some
of them having been directly involved in the treaty making,
it is almost unbclicvable that the Government party could have
ever returncd from their efforts with any impression but that
they had given an assurance in perpctuity to the Indians in
the territories that their traditional use of the lands was

not affected.

Ted Trindie, present at the signing of Trecaty No. 11
at Fort Simpson said: "Well, they talked about land and the
Indians were scared that by taking Trcaty they would lose.all
of their rights but the Indians werc told not, but if they were
taking trcaty they would get protection. They were told it was
not to get the land but they would still be frec to hunt and

roam as usual, no interference.”

At Fort Wrigley, Phillip Moses remembers that the
Commissioner "said nothing would be changed, everything would
be the same as way back, and cverything would be the same in

the future ...".
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Pretty much the same assurance camc at Fort Resolution.
When Chief Snuff appeared to be holding out, according to
Johnny Jecan-Marie Beaulieu, who was there, he was told by the
Treaty Party: "wc will pay out the Treaty to you herc and it
has no binding on your land or countryat all. It has nothing

to do with this land."

Almost cach Indian witness affirmed how the Indian
represcntatives only signed after being re-assured that as
onc expressed it "If you don't change anything, we will take

treaty."

As if the above was not cnough, further examination
of the cvidence, including the material from the archives put
in through Father Fumolcau, certainly leaves an impression of
haste, almost an "ultimatum" as Bishop Breynat later reported.
The uneasy feceling that the ncgotiations were not all as above
board as one would have hoped for is cnhanced by statcments
like that of Pierre Michel who recported that at Fort Providence

the Commissioner said:

w .., if didn't take moncy, there going
to be some sort of trouble for the
Indian pecople."”

The comments of Mr., Harris in his report in 1925 for

the Simpson Agency lends some credence to the anxicty. lle

reports:
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"I belicve it to be my duty to inform
you that I know that certain promiscs
were made these Indians at the first
Treaty which in my opinion never
should have been made. The Indians
at Fort Simpson did not wish to ac-
cept the Treaty at first, and T
think the wisest course would have
been to let them alone till they
asked for it themselves, though I
do not in any way wish to criticise
the action of my superiors in the

. Department."

Confirmation of haste and perhaps irrcgularities is
easy to find from the suggestion put forth during the hecaring
that at Fort Simpson when the Indians led by 014 Norwegian
(their rccognized spokesman) refused to sign and left, the
Treaty Party then appointed Antoine as Chicf and Trecaty was
signed. Again there is the testimony of Chief Yendo, who is
shown as having signed for Fort Wrigley, but who has no memory

of having signed and swears he cannot read or write.

The impracticability of expecting the indigenous
peoples with whom the treatics were concernced herc to be able
to sustain themselves on the area of land cach was to reccive
when reserves camc to be allocated and sct aside offers onc
more reason to suspect the bona fides of thc negotiations.
Perhaps the extreme south-western area might permit a bare
subsistence living to be grubbed from thc soil, but most of
the arca cmbraced by the treaties is as alrcady described --

rock, lake and tundra -- with hunting, trapping and fishing

offering the only viable method of maintaining life.
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In examining agreccements such as trcaties where as
in the present case one side, the Indians, were in such an
inferior bargaining position, it is pecrhaps well to remember
the cautionary words of Mr. Justice Matthews in Choctaw Nation

v. United States (1886) 119 U.S. 314 where at page 315 he said:

" The reccognized relation between
the partics to this controversy,
thercfore, is that between a superior
and an inferior, whereby the latter
is placed under the care and control
of the former, and which, while it
authorizes the adoption on the part
of the United States of such policy
as their own public interests may
dictate, recognizes, on the other
hand, such an interpretation of
their acts and promises as justice
and reason dcemand in all cases where
power is exerted by the strong over
those to whom they owe care and pro-
tection. The parties are not on an
equal footing, and that incquality
is to be made good hy the superior
justice which looks only to the sub-
stance of the right, without regard
to technical rules framed under a
system of municipal jurisprudence,
formulating the rights and obli-
gations of private persons, cqually
subject to the same laws."

Justice Hall at pagec 73 of the report in the Calder

Case in discussing onus states:

: - " It would, accordingly, appear to
' be beyond question that the onus of
proving that thc Sovereign intended
to extinguish the Indian title lies
on the respondent and that intention
must be '"clear and plain". There is
no such proof in the case at bar; no
legislation to that cffect."
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With the above principle in mind I conclude under
this hcading that therc is enough doubt as to whether the
full aboriginal title had been extinguished, certainly in the i
minds of the Indians, to justify thc caveators attempting to

protect the Indian position until a final adjudicatioen can be
obtaincd.

6. THE CAVEATORS HAVE A LEGAL TITLE
AND INTEREST IN THE LANDS DESCRIBED
IN THE CAVEAT, WHICIH TITLE AND
INTEREST CAN BE PROTECTED BY THE
FILING OF THE CAVEAT 1IN THE LAND
TITLES REGISTRY OF THE NORTHWEST
TERRITORIES.

This heading of argument was mentioned in my June 14
Judgment (supra) but reserved until now, There are two heads

of argument here:

(a) Are aboriginal rights an interest
in Tand that can be protectcd by
caveat?

(b) Can the Land Titles Act have appli-
cation to lands for which no
certificate of titlc has been
issued or wherc no application
to rcgister under the Act has
been made?

Provision for lodging or registration of a caveat

is made in Secction 132 of the Land Titles Act:

"Any person claiming to be intcrested
in any land under any will, settle-
ment or trust deed, or under any
instrument of transfer or trans-
mission, or under any unrcgistcred
instrument, or under an exccution,
where the exccution creditor secks
to affect land in which the cx-
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“"ecution debtor is interested bene-
ficially but the title to which-is
registered in the name of some other
person, or otherwisc, may lodge a
caveat with the registrar to the
ceffect that no registration of any
transfer or other instrument affect-
ing the said land shall be madc,
and that no certificate of title
therefor shall bec granted, until
such cavcat has bcen withdrawn or
has lapsed as hercinafter provided,
unless such instrument or certifi-
cate of title is expressed to be

“subject to the claim of the
caveator as stated in such caveat."

It scems clear to me that aboriginal rights are an
interest in land: cf. St. Catherinec Milling and Calder cases
referred to above. The phrase "or otherwisc' is certainly
broad cnough to include such an interest as aboriginal rights
or Indian title. Sce Re. MacCullough and Graham (1912) 2
W.W.R. 311,

It was submitted on behalf of the Crown under this
heading, (b), that the Land Titles Act cannot have any appli-
cation to lands for which ncithcr a Certificate of Title has
issued nor an application to have his title registered has

been made. S. 54(1).

The argument was prcsented on the basis that four
types of title, only, form thc basis for title in the North-
west Territorics vis a vis the Land Titles Act.

(a) Crown grants brior to 1887 for

which no application to register
has yet been made;
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(b) Land to which Crown grants have
been issucd and where application
;has been made under Section 54(1)
and a certificate of title has
alrcady issued;

(c) Ungranted Crown lands for which
no certificate of titlc has
issued;

(d) Transfer or Notification in
respect of Territorial lands.

Before examining the question in its broader scnse
1 should mention that the cvidence beforc me in respect to the
Territorial Lands under type (d) above convinces nc that a
caveat can be clearly registercd against these lands. Sce
Scctions 3 and 5 of the Territorial Lands Act, R.S.C., 1970,
c. T-6 where a notification has the same effecct as a grant of

land made by letters patent under the Great Seal,

The practice followed in the Land Titles Office located
at Ycllowknifc from the testimony that came out before me belics
the position here taken by the Crown lawyers in the initial hcar-
ings. As 1 have already mentioned, however, while such practice

may be persuasive it is not conclusive,

Counscl for the Crown under this heading proccecded to
examine the 1886, the 1894 and the present Land Titles Acts.
His submission briefly is that, referring to the 1886 statute
first, Section 44 provides for i:rsuing a certificatc of title
upon rcceipt of a grant, Section 45 permits the holdecr of any

letters patent alrcady issucd to make application to have his
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title registcred, Section 100 lays down the procedurec to follow
in filing a caveat-and that Section 38 provides for a register
(made up of duplicates of all certificates of titles issuéd).
With particular reference to Section 100(3) wherein the regis-
trar is rcquircd to enter a memorandum of the dectails of the
cavcat in the recgister, it is argued that reading thesc sections
together it can lead only to one conclusion, namely that therc

must be a certificate of title before a cavcat can be filed.

Again turning to the 1894 statute reference is made
to Scction 33(1) which provides for a '"day-book) to be kept by
the registrar in which '"shall be entcred by a short description
cvery instrument rclating to lands for which a certificate of
title has issued or been applied for which is given in for regis-
tration ..."; Section 34 provides for the 'register' as in
Section 44 of the 1886 statute, and to Se¢ction 99, which like
Section 100 of the 18806 statute refers to caveats. This section
has one addition, namely: '"but in the case of a cavcat before
registration of a titlec under this Act the registrar shall on
receipt thercof enter the same in the "day-book". It is argued
here that reading the rcquircment to enter the cavcat in the
da};book which in turn is to contain a short description of
cvery instrument relating to lands for which a certificate of
“title has been issued or been applied for makes it clear that
failing a certificatc of titlc or application therefore therc

can be no filing of the caveat.
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The same arguments are brought forward and to the same
effect with respect to the present statute, the-relevant sections

being Sections 134 and 35.
Sections 134 and 35 arc as follows:

"134. (1) Upon the receipt of a caveat, the
registrar shall center the caveat in the day-
book, and shall make a memorandum thereof
upon the certificate of title of the land
affected by such caveat and shall forthwith
send a notice of the caveat through the post
office or otherwise to the person against
whose title the caveat has been lodged.

(2) In the case of a cavcat before regis-
tration of a title under this Act the registrar
shall on rcceipt thereof cnter the caveat in
the day-book."

"35..The registrar shall keep a book called
a day-book, in which shall be entered by a
short description cvery instrument given in
for registration relating to lands for
wvhich a certificate of title has issued or
been applied for, with the day, hour and
! minute of its so being given in."

It is argued that thesc two sections when read in con-

junction with sections 48, 49 and 50, contain the same requirement

as is argucd was thc casc in respect to the two previous statutes
and as alrcady set forth. Reliance is placed on the reasohing con-
tained in Brotherhoods of Railway Enpnloyees, et al v. The New York
Central Railroad Company et al, 1958 S.C.R. 519. It is argued here
also that the Land Titles Aet is what might be considered a complete
statute and that ;hebregistrar's functions and duties arc meticu-
lously set out,and that it should not be presumed that Parliament
has forgotfen anything, hence if a certificate of title- is required

as a condition of cntering an instrument that must be respected.
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Particular cmphasis is made here to section 45 which specifically
recognizes the right to file "in the office of the registrar any
mortgage or other encumbrance crcated by any person rightfully in

possession of land prior to the issuc of the grant from the Crown

I agrec with the proposition that the Land Titles Act is
a completc statute. It is my opinion, however, that its provisions
are clearly broad cnough to permit the lodging or filing of a caveat
in situations such as the present where no certificate of title has
yet been issued or wherc no application for issuance of a certifi-

cate of title has yct becn made.

Subsection (2) of Scction 134 stands separatcly in the
present statute and clearly refers to ''a caveat before registration

of a titlc under this Act ...".

It seems clear to me also that Scction 95 in its recference
to "mortgage or other encumbrance' contemplates a situation such as
the present one where the caveators claim they hold an encumbrance
on the lands referred to in the proposed caveat, namely an encumbrance
arising out of what thcy refer to as aboriginal rights or alterna-
tively by virtue of the declaration in their favour in the Order in
Council alrcady referred to. By Section 2 of the Act "'encumbrance'
means any charge on land, created or cffected for any purposc what-
ever, inclusive of mortgages, mechanics liens ... unless expressly
distinguished." I can find nothing in the statute which prohibits
using a cavecat to serve notice to the cffect that the caveator claims

to have a charge on the land of the nature set forth in thc caveat.
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Under this heading therefore, I am satisfied that the

provisions of the Land Titles Act do permit the filing or regis-

tering € a caveat such as is proposed here, and that this applies

even in the case of unpatentcd Crown land.

It should be remembered here that the caveat is not
being registered or in any way placed on thc Crown title, where
as here therc is no title, but is under Section 134(2) being

entered in the day book where it will remain as notice of the

‘claim only,to take effect only in the event some person or per-

sons makes application to have his titlc registered under the

Act. (Sec. 54). After all the derivation of the word “"caveat"

is "to beware" and this is really all it serves to do, to warn

persons who might in the future decal with the land involved. The
manner in which, for example, the Alberta Registrar uses a card

index system is illuminating here.

Under this heading the following cases were considered
carefully: A4.C. of Canada v. Registrar of Titles of Vancouver Land
Registration District, 1934 4 D.L.R. 764; In re. Interprovinetial
Pipe Line Company (1951) 1 W.W.R. (NS) 479; Prudential Trust Co.
Ltd. v. The Registrar, The Humboldt L.R.D. 1957 S.C.R. 658;

Balzer v. Registrar of Moosomin L.R.D. et al 1955 S.C.R. 8Z;
Molner v. Stanolind 0il & Gas Co. et al 1959 S.C.R. 592; and
Graham's Case 1918 2 W.W.R. 943.
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CONCLUSIONS

To sum up my conclusions under the rcference:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(s)

(6)

1 am satisfied that thosc who
signed the caveat are present-
day descendants of those dis-
tinct Indian groups who,
organized in societies and
using the land as their fore-
fathers had donc for centurics,
have since time immemorial used
the land embraced by the caveat
as theirs

I am satisfied that those same
indigenous pcople as mentioned
in (1) above are prime facie
owners of the lands covered by
the caveat -- that they have
what is known as aboriginal
rights.

That there exists a clear con-
stitutional obligation on the
part of the Canadian Government
to protect the legal rights of
the indigenous peoples in the
area covered by the caveat.

That notwithstanding the lan-
guage of the two Treaties there
is sufficient doubt on the facts
that aboriginal title was ecx-
tinguished that such claim for
title should be permitted to be
put forward by the cavcators.

That the above purported claim
for aboriginal rights consti-
tutes an interest in_ land which
can be protccted by caveat under
the Land Titles Act.

That the provisions of the Land
Titles Act permit the filing or
registering of a cavecat such as
is presented here cven in the
case of unpatented land.
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In answer to the reference to me by the Registrar I
would answer that in my opinion he has a duty to lodge the

caveat presented to him and enter same in the day book.

There will be an order directing the Government of
Canada to pay the costs of the caveators to be taxed on one and
one-half column 5, to includc second counsel fec, and a special

fec of $500.00 to cover written argument.

The Federal Government will be required to pay the

costs of D. Brand, amicus curiae on a solicitor and client basis.

There will be a direction that following thec final

appeal from this judgment, if any, that all tapes taken of the

.evidence by the Court reporters be turned over to the Public

ARchives of Canada because of their possible historic value and

interest.

The restraint on registration ordercd by me on April
3, 1973, and referred to above, shall be removed and vacated as
of this date, but all monies dcposited or bonds posted for pos-
sible damages shall be rctained pending final appeal, with the
right to'any person affected to apply to me for relief or further

directions as that person may be advised.

By virtue of the provisions of the Land Titles Aet any
person or persons wrongfully and without reasonable cause filing
or registering a caveat can be made responsible for any damages

caused by such' filing. I am not unaware of the vast area en-
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compasscd by the present caveat and by the possible damages
which may or may not result from its filing. f am also not
unmindful of the fact that the caveators and thosc for whoii
they act here, are probabiy unable to provide bonds of indem-
nity or pay damages if awarded against thcm. Accordingly,
subject to whatever a higher court may say, I dircct that until
all possible appeals from this my judgment have been completed
or the time for launching same has cxpired, thc REgistrar shall
be stayed from filing or registering the caveat, The registrar
will be required however to keep a record of all transactions
that may be registered or otherwise rccorded in his office and
in respect to unpatented Crown lands both Federal and Terri-
‘torial, during the period of this stay, so as to provide the
caveators with a record of what damages they may have suffered
during the stay, this. record to be turned over to them in the

event this judgment is sustained.

I wish to conclude by thanking counsel for the
cavcators for their cooperation in enabling the hearing to be
concluded so spcedily and for their legal brief which has becen
most helpful. Counscl for the Territorial Government has as-
sisted throughout and been most helpful in the furtherance of
these proceedings. Finally I should observe that Mr. Brand in
his role as amicus curiae with his ever penetrating mind has
made my task much easier.

-

_W. G. Morrow.

Yellowknife, N.W.T.
September 6, 1973,




Counsel:

C. G. Sutton, Esq.,

G. Price, Esq.,

Dr. A. R. Thompson, Esq.,
D, Sanders, Esq.,

for the Caveators
pD. Brand, Esq.,
C Amicus Curiac

F. G. Smith' Q.C.’ Esq.,
J. R. Slaven, Esq.,

M. Smith, [Lsq.,

Miss P, W. Flicger,

for the Territorial CGovernment

T. B. Marsh, Esq.,
I. G. Whitehall, Esq.,

for the Department of Justice
(Present during May 14 and 15 only)
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